












































































From: McClure, Dean, EMNRD on behalf of Engineer, OCD, EMNRD
To: Jerry Sherrell
Cc: McClure, Dean, EMNRD; Wrinkle, Justin, EMNRD; Powell, Brandon, EMNRD; lisa@rwbyram.com; Paradis, Kyle O; Walls,

Christopher
Subject: Approved Administrative Order CTB-857-A
Date: Friday, October 14, 2022 1:00:50 PM
Attachments: CTB857A Order.pdf

NMOCD has issued Administrative Order CTB-857-A which authorizes Mack Energy Corporation
(13837) to surface commingle or off-lease measure, as applicable, the following wells:
 

Well API Well Name UL or Q/Q S-T-R Pool
30-005-64308 Thunder Bay Federal Com #1H E/2 W/2 22-15S-29E 52770
30-005-64307 Hamilton Federal Com #1H W/2 W/2 22-15S-29E 52770
30-005-64328 Grand Forks Federal Com #2H E/2 E/2 22-15S-29E 52770
30-005-64326 Spruce Grove Federal Com #1H W/2 E/2 21-15S-29E 52770
30-005-64330 Meadow Lake Federal #1H E/2 E/2 21-15S-29E 52770

 
The administrative order is attached to this email and can also be found online at OCD Imaging.
 
Please review the content of the order to ensure you are familiar with the authorities granted and any
conditions of approval. If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me.
 
 
Dean McClure
Petroleum Engineer, Oil Conservation Division
New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department
(505) 469-8211
 

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=ADC183EC39EF4BFCA5675AEB987A1CF3-DEAN.MCCLUR
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mailto:cwalls@blm.gov
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
ENERGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 


OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 


APPLICATION FOR SURFACE COMMINGLING 
SUBMITTED BY MACK ENERGY CORPORATION 


 
ORDER NO. CTB-857-A


ORDER 


The Director of the New Mexico Oil Conservation Division (“OCD”), having considered the 
application and the recommendation of the OCD Engineering Bureau, issues the following Order. 


FINDINGS OF FACT 


1. Mack Energy Corporation (“Applicant”) submitted a complete application to surface 
commingle the oil production from the pools, leases, and wells identified in Exhibit A 
(“Application”). 


2. Applicant proposed a method to allocate the oil production to the pools, leases, and wells to 
be commingled. 


3. To the extent that ownership is identical, Applicant submitted a certification by a licensed 
attorney or qualified petroleum landman that the ownership in the pools, leases, and wells to 
be commingled is identical as defined in 19.15.12.7.B. NMAC. 


4. To the extent that ownership is diverse, Applicant provided notice of the Application to all 
persons owning an interest in the oil production to be commingled, including the owners of 
royalty and overriding royalty interests, regardless of whether they have a right or option to 
take their interests in kind, and those persons either submitted a written waiver or did not file 
an objection to the Application. 


5. Applicant provided notice of the Application to the Bureau of Land Management (“BLM”) 
or New Mexico State Land Office (“NMSLO”), as applicable. 


6. Applicant submitted or intends to submit one or more proposed communitization 
agreement(s) (“Proposed Agreement(s)”) to the BLM or NMSLO, as applicable, identifying 
the acreage of each lease to be consolidated into a single pooled area (“Pooled Area”), as 
described in Exhibit B. 


CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 


7. OCD has jurisdiction to issue this Order pursuant to the Oil and Gas Act, NMSA 1978, §§ 
70-2-6, 70-2-11, 70-2-12, 70-2-16, and 70-2-17, 19.15.12. NMAC, and 19.15.23. NMAC. 


8. Applicant satisfied the notice requirements for the Application in accordance with 
19.15.12.10.A.(2) NMAC, 19.15.12.10.C.(4)(c) NMAC, and 19.15.12.10.C.(4)(e) NMAC, 
as applicable.  
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9. Applicant satisfied the notice requirements for the Application in accordance with 
19.15.23.9.A.(5) NMAC and 19.15.23.9.A.(6) NMAC, as applicable. 


10. Applicant’s proposed method of allocation, as modified herein, complies with 
19.15.12.10.B.(1) NMAC or 19.15.12.10.C.(1) NMAC, as applicable. 


11. Commingling of oil production from state, federal, or tribal leases shall not commence until 
approved by the BLM or NMSLO, as applicable, in accordance with 19.15.12.10.B.(3) 
NMAC and 19.15.12.10.C.(4)(h) NMAC. 


12. By granting the Application with the conditions specified below, this Order prevents waste 
and protects correlative rights, public health, and the environment. 


ORDER 


1. Applicant is authorized to surface commingle oil production from the pools, leases, and wells 
identified in Exhibit A. 


Applicant is authorized to store and measure oil production off-lease from the pools, leases, 
and wells identified in Exhibit A at a central tank battery or gas title transfer meter described 
in Exhibit A. 


2. This Order supersedes Order CTB-857. 


3. For each Pooled Area described in Exhibit B, Applicant shall submit a Proposed Agreement 
to the BLM or NMSLO, as applicable, prior to commencing oil production.  If Applicant 
fails to submit the Proposed Agreement, this Order shall terminate on the following day. 


No later than sixty (60) days after the BLM or NMSLO approves or denies a Proposed 
Agreement, Applicant shall submit a Form C-103 to OCD with a copy of the decision and a 
description of the approved lands, as applicable.  If Applicant withdraws or the BLM or 
NMSLO denies a Proposed Agreement, this Order shall terminate on the date of such action, 
and Applicant shall cease commingling the production from the Pooled Area.  If the BLM or 
NMSLO approves but modifies the Proposed Agreement(s), Applicant shall comply with the 
approved Agreement(s), and no later than sixty (60) days after such decision, Applicant shall 
submit a new surface commingling application to OCD to conform this Order with the 
approved Agreement(s).  If Applicant fails to submit the new surface commingling 
application or OCD denies the new surface commingling application, this Order shall 
terminate on the date of such action.  


Applicant shall allocate the oil production to each lease within a Pooled Area in proportion 
to the acreage that each lease bears to the entire acreage of the Pooled Area described in 
Exhibit B until the Proposed Agreement which includes the Pooled Area is approved.  After 
the Proposed Agreement is approved, the oil production from the Pooled Area shall be 
allocated as required by the BLM’s or NMSLO’s, as applicable, approval of the Agreement, 
including any production that had been allocated previously in accordance with this Order. 
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4. The oil production for each well identified in Exhibit A shall be allocated by conducting a 
minimum of one (1) well test per month. 


Applicant shall conduct a well test by separating and measuring the oil production from that 
well for a minimum of twenty-four (24) consecutive hours. 


The well test requirements of this Order shall be suspended for any well shut-in for a period 
that continues for more than thirty (30) days until the well commences production. 


5. Applicant shall measure and market the commingled oil at a central tank battery described 
in Exhibit A in accordance with this Order and 19.15.18.15. NMAC or 19.15.23.8. NMAC. 


6. Applicant shall calibrate the meters used to measure or allocate oil production in accordance 
with 19.15.12.10.C.(2) NMAC. 


7. If the commingling of oil production from any pool, lease, or well reduces the value of the 
commingled oil production to less than if it had remained segregated, no later than sixty (60) 
days after the decrease in value has occurred Applicant shall submit a new surface 
commingling application to OCD to amend this Order to remove the pool, lease, or well 
whose oil production caused the decrease in value.  If Applicant fails to submit a new 
application, this Order shall terminate on the following day, and if OCD denies the 
application, this Order shall terminate on the date of such action. 


8. Applicant shall not commence commingling oil or gas production from state, federal, or 
tribal leases until approved by the BLM or NMSLO, as applicable. 


9. If OCD determines that Applicant has failed to comply with any provision of this Order, 
OCD may take any action authorized by the Oil and Gas Act or the New Mexico 
Administrative Code (NMAC). 


10. OCD retains jurisdiction of this matter and reserves the right to modify or revoke this Order 
as it deems necessary. 


STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 


 


 
________________________________  DATE: ______________________ 
ADRIENNE E. SANDOVAL 
DIRECTOR 


10/13/2022







Order: CTB-857-A
Operator: Mack Energy Corporation (13837)


Central Tank Battery: Thunder Bay Central Tank Battery
Central Tank Battery Location: UL M, Section 22, Township 15 South, Range 29 East


Gas Title Transfer Meter Location:


Pool Name Pool Code
ROUND TANK; SAN ANDRES 52770


UL or Q/Q S-T-R
E/2 W/2 22-15S-29E


W/2 W/2 22-15S-29E
E/2 E/2 22-15S-29E


E/2 E/2, B 21-15S-29E
G J O 21-15S-29E


Well API UL or Q/Q S-T-R Pool
30-005-64308 E/2 W/2 22-15S-29E 52770
30-005-64307 W/2 W/2 22-15S-29E 52770
30-005-64328 E/2 E/2 22-15S-29E 52770
30-005-64326 W/2 E/2 21-15S-29E 52770
30-005-64330 E/2 E/2 21-15S-29E 52770


Well Name


Spruce Grove Federal Com #1H
Meadow Lake Federal #1H


Thunder Bay Federal Com #1H
Hamilton Federal Com #1H


Grand Forks Federal Com #2H


Wells


State of New Mexico
Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department


Exhibit A


Pools


Leases as defined in 19.15.12.7(C) NMAC


CA San Andres NMNM 139214
Lease


CA San Andres NMNM 141125
CA San Andres NMNM 140362


NMNM 0390241
NMNM 066484
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Order: CTB-857-A
Operator: Mack Energy Corporation (13837)


Pooled Area UL or Q/Q S-T-R Acres Pooled 
Area ID


CA San Andres BLM W/2 E/2 21-15S-29E 160 A


Lease UL or Q/Q S-T-R Acres Pooled 
Area ID


NMNM 0390241 B 21-15S-29E 40 A
NMNM 066484 G J O 21-15S-29E 120 A


State of New Mexico
Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department


Exhibit B


Pooled Areas


Leases Comprising Pooled Areas
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From: Jerry Sherrell
To: McClure, Dean, EMNRD
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: surface commingling application CTB-857-A
Date: Monday, September 26, 2022 2:48:47 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Dean,
 
I was told by our group that this well will probably not be drilled anytime in the near future. Can we remove this
well from the list and I will revise if they change their minds.
 

From: McClure, Dean, EMNRD <Dean.McClure@state.nm.us> 
Sent: Friday, September 09, 2022 3:13 PM
To: Jerry Sherrell <jerrys@mec.com>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: surface commingling application CTB-857-A
 

EXTERNAL EMAIL - Verify the sender and use caution before opening attachments or clicking
links

Jerry,
 
Please provide the CA packet for the following tract and well:

30-005-64327 Grand Forks Federal Com
#1H W/2 E/2 22-15S-29E 52770

 
 
Dean McClure
Petroleum Engineer, Oil Conservation Division
New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department
(505) 469-8211
 

From: Jerry Sherrell <jerrys@mec.com> 
Sent: Thursday, August 25, 2022 10:43 AM
To: McClure, Dean, EMNRD <Dean.McClure@state.nm.us>
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] RE: surface commingling application CTB-857-A
 
Good morning Dean,
 
Any updates?
 

From: Jerry Sherrell 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2022 4:13 PM
To: 'McClure, Dean, EMNRD' <Dean.McClure@state.nm.us>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: surface commingling application CTB-857-A
 
Dean,
 
Please remove the section 28 wells from the application and I will amend at a later date. Thank you.
 
Jerry W. Sherrell

mailto:jerrys@mec.com
mailto:Dean.McClure@emnrd.nm.gov
mailto:jerrys@mec.com
mailto:Dean.McClure@state.nm.us
mailto:Dean.McClure@state.nm.us

This request is for all leases within this designated project area. Any future in-fill
wells will be added using sundry notices and notification for only the wells added.





Regulatory Supervisor
Mack Energy Corporation
Redwood Operating LLC
PO Box 960
Artesia, NM 88210
Office 575-748-1288
Cell 575-703-7382
jerrys@mec.com
 
 
 

From: McClure, Dean, EMNRD <Dean.McClure@state.nm.us> 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2022 3:27 PM
To: Jerry Sherrell <jerrys@mec.com>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: surface commingling application CTB-857-A
 

EXTERNAL EMAIL - Verify the sender and use caution before opening attachments or clicking
links

Hello Jerry,
 
A well which is not approved yet cannot be included in the commingling permit. The 2 infill wells can be
approved to be added in at a later date via sundry with no notice. However, the 2 wells in section 28 will not be
able to be included until their APDs have been approved. Depending on your schedule for bringing production
online, you may wish to either place this application on hold until those wells have been approved or remove
them from this application and bring them into the project later via an amendment.
 
If you wish to place the application on hold until the section 28 wells can be added, then I will also need the CA
packets for their HSUs. That is unless the CA applications are put into file by the BLM prior to this application
moving forward; in which case I can use that record instead of having the CA packets.
 
Additionally, in the past you have provided a document speaking to the agreement between the various chase
interests. Specifically as it relates to which interest owners you are delivering notice to via hand. Please submit
that or something similar to be put in file for this application that confirms these interests have received
notification.
 
Dean McClure
Petroleum Engineer, Oil Conservation Division
New Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources Department
(505) 469-8211
 

From: Jerry Sherrell <jerrys@mec.com> 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2022 3:08 PM
To: McClure, Dean, EMNRD <Dean.McClure@state.nm.us>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: surface commingling application CTB-857-A
 

CAUTION: This email originated outside of our organization. Exercise caution prior to clicking on links or
opening attachments.

Good afternoon Dean,

mailto:jerrys@mec.com
mailto:Dean.McClure@state.nm.us
mailto:jerrys@mec.com
mailto:jerrys@mec.com
mailto:Dean.McClure@state.nm.us


 
I have submitted the Legal Notice for the returned interest owner.
 
The status for the APD’s is still being reviewed by BLM.
 
I will get the CA’s from our land department and get them to you.
 

From: McClure, Dean, EMNRD <Dean.McClure@state.nm.us> 
Sent: Thursday, July 21, 2022 1:00 PM
To: Jerry Sherrell <jerrys@mec.com>
Subject: surface commingling application CTB-857-A
 

EXTERNAL EMAIL - Verify the sender and use caution before opening attachments or clicking
links

Mr. Sherrell,
 
I am reviewing surface commingling application CTB-857-A which involves a commingling project that includes
the Thunder Bay Central Tank Battery and is operated by Mack Energy Corporation (13837).
 
Presuming that the document regarding the interests for which notice was hand delivered is relevant to this
application, please provide it.
 
Please confirm that the following person was notified of this application (was public notice provided?):
6/21/2022 Abble Moody Cliff 7019 1640 0002 0377 7910 Returned

 
What is the status of the following wells?

??? Thunder Bay Federal Com
#2H E/2 W/2 22-15S-29E 52770

??? Hamilton Federal Com #2H W/2 W/2 22-15S-29E 52770
??? Colwood Federal Com #1H W/2 E/2 28-15S-29E 52770
??? Parkesville Federal Com #1H E/2 E/2 28-15S-29E 52770

 
Please provide the CA packets for the following tracts of land:

CA San Andres BLM W/2 E/2 21-15S-29E 320
CA San Andres BLM W/2 E/2 22-15S-29E 320

 
The following request is a bit unusual:

Generally the approval for infill wells does not require that notice of the sundry be provided. I’m unsure if this
additional notice was your intent when making this request and as such am pointing it out for you to keep in
mind for future applications. However, I don’t really see a reason not to allow the inclusion of infill wells
requiring notice of the sundry.
 
 
 
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
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District I
1625 N. French Dr., Hobbs, NM 88240
Phone:(575) 393­6161 Fax:(575) 393­0720

District II
811 S. First St., Artesia, NM 88210
Phone:(575) 748­1283 Fax:(575) 748­9720

District III
1000 Rio Brazos Rd., Aztec, NM 87410
Phone:(505) 334­6178 Fax:(505) 334­6170

District IV
1220 S. St Francis Dr., Santa Fe, NM 87505
Phone:(505) 476­3470 Fax:(505) 476­3462

State of New Mexico
Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources

Oil Conservation Division
1220 S. St Francis Dr.
Santa Fe, NM 87505

CONDITIONS

Action  109227

CONDITIONS
Operator:

MACK ENERGY CORP
P.O. Box 960
Artesia, NM 882110960

OGRID:

13837
Action Number:

109227
Action Type:

[C­107] Surface Commingle or Off­Lease (C­107B)

CONDITIONS

Created By Condition Condition Date

dmcclure Please review the content of the order to ensure you are familiar with the authorities granted and any conditions of approval. If you have any questions
regarding this matter, please contact me.

10/14/2022


